


DESCRIPTION
CONDITION

X_EXCELLENT
—GOOD

—FAIR

—DETERIORATED

—RUINS
—UNEXPOSED

CHECK ONE
—UNALTERED
^ALTERED

CHECK ONE
JCORIGINALSITE 
—MOVED DATE.

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The four-story building which houses the restaurant is located midblock 
on a commercial street in downtown Brooklyn and is flanked by modem commercial 
structures. The building occupies the entire nominated site. It dates from the 
mid-1870's and is basically late Italianate in design, but the unusually high, 
painted wooden storefront, in neo-Grec style, was probably added in 1892 when the 
restaurant opened at this location.^ The entrance is protected by a portico with 
modified Doric columns, Secondary entrances set at each side of the front and a 
large front window are flanked by slender colonnettes with stylized foliate 
capitals. A continuous comice above the ground floor is carried on closely spaced 
angular brackets with incised motifs on the ends. The brackets alternate with 
raised eight-pointed star motifs in the frieze. Through the large front window 
one can see the-1890*s interior. A three-story brownstone front rises above the 
storefront. The windows with molded enframements have projecting sills carried 
on corbel blocks and are surmounted by Individual cornices. A simple modillioned 
roof cornice with wide fascia crowns the whole. The side walls are non-exposed 
party walls, and the rear elevation is not visible. The building occupies the entire 
nominated site.

Within either side of the entranceway, are two bays where patrons may 
await seating. These bays are created by the two projecting wood-enframed windows.
The ceilings of these bays are embellished by the once popular Lincrusta-Walton type ' 
of wall covering embossed in a sunburst design. The walls have swirling designs 
of a more classical type. This type of wall covering is used thrpughout the long, 
narrow room^which seats about 150. ,

The series of tall arched mirrors along three sides of.the restaurant 
lends a sense of ,spa,ciousness to the Interior^ which .actually measures only 25X90 feet. 
The dark red cherry wood trim, enframing the mirrors and providing a. comice beneath 
the deep cove of the ceiling, is a unifying feature for this long room. The arched 
mirrors along the walls rise above a wainscot at table level ap^.^te separated by dark 
red panels of patterned cut-velvet. These panels are crowned by wood entablatures 
with pulvinated friezes from which the molded wood arches of the mirrors spring.
The ar&es have center wood blocks, simulating keystones, upon which the horizontal 
wood cornice which encircles the room is set. In the spandrels between the arches 
is a gold embossed wall covering of the Lincrusta-Walton type. The back end of the 
room features a wide flat-arched central mirror which is complemented by two narrow 
recessed mirrors set behind the entrance and exit doors to the kitchen and service 
area. A recessed area for the serving bar is located about midway down the 
east side of the room. The paneled bar was transferred from the restaurant 
at 302 Fulton Street and has cabinets and a long mirror behind it. The restaurant 
also retains its original mahogany tables.

Gage & Tollner uses both gas and electricity for illumination. This is 
accomplished by means of the original combination gas-electric fixtures which 
were installed in 1888, when a permit was Issued to the restaurant to bum gas or 
"the new incandescent light." These elaborate brass fixtures, with widely spread 
arms, are evenly spaced along the center line of the ceiling, extending from front 
to rear. At the end of each arm, on either side of the curvilinear central portion 
adorned with hollow metal oval and circular urns, there are two gas jets with flues 
and handsome cut-glass bowls to diffuse the light. Also, at the end of each arm 
set between the jets, is an incandescent light bulb. The light bulbs^which were 
originally barOjnow have flower-like glass bowls.
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The text of this report was taken almost in its entirety from the New York Landmarks 
Preservation Commission Designation Reports, Gage & Tollner (LP-0836), November, 1974, 
by Marjorie Pearson, and Gage & Tollner, Interior (LP-0885), March 1975, by Alan 
Burnham and Ellen Kramer.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Gage & Tollner, one of Brooklyn's bestc-known restaurants, has one ■ 
of the few remaining authentic Victorian interiors in the city. The restaurant 
had its beginnings in 1879 when Charles M. Gage opened an eating establishment 
at 302 Fulton Street. In 1884 Eugene Tollner joined Gage, and the restaurant 
was renamed Gage & Tollner. They moved the restaurant to its present location at 372 
Fulton Street in 1889 in the center of downtown Brooklyn, close to the Brooklyn 
City Hall (now Borough Hall). Fulton Street was one of Brooklyn's main 
thoroughfares, leading east and south to join King's Highway, the main access route 
to Long Island, and west and north to the ferry terminals on the East River and 
the Brooklyn Bridge. The Gage & Tollner Restaurant became widely known and attracted 
many noteworthy patrons.

VJhen Messrs. Gage and Tollner retired in 1911, they sold the business, 
with the condition that the new owners maintain the customs and traditions established 
by-the founders. Subsequent owners have accepted the same condition, and the 
present managers of Gage & Tolltief mintain the traditions which have characterized 
the restaurant for 100 years. A direct result of the intentional continuity of . 
tradition at the restaurant is its survival as one of the few completely intact 
Victorian interiors in New York City. The once-popular^ but now rare^Lincrusta- 
Walton wall covering, made of linseed oil and sawdust to resemble embossed leather, 
still lines the walls, and the panelling, mirrors, bar, mahagony tables, and 
combination gas-electric fixtures all survive Intact and continue to define a 
completely authentic and original Vittorian restaurant. The building and its 
interior are designated New York City Landmarks.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Building occupies Borough of Brooklyn Tax Map Block 154, Lot 17, and is 26.4 feet 
by 126.8 feet, as outlined on the attached map.
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